




 

 

 

 
TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205 

 
Town Manager’s Office   • 43 Bombardier Road • 802-893-6655 • FAX: 893-1005 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Milton Selectboard 
 
FROM:  Erik Wells, Director- Administration & Community Services 
 
RE: Community Champion Awards Committee 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2016 
 
The Community Champions Award Committee began in FY ’14 and its work culminated by 
presenting recognition awards at National Night Out in August 2015. This proved to be a 
great initiative to recognize members of our community.  
 
The Committee is reappointed each fiscal year and is comprised of three community 
members who organize and oversee the outreach, nomination and selection processes. 
Serving on the first committee were Jenn Taylor, Sharon Radkte and Jamey Barnao. This 
group developed a process to make this program fluid moving forward. Kym Duchesneau 
provided staff support and assistance.  
 
I recommend that this committee serves from September 1 to August 30 rather than on a 
fiscal year schedule. Since National Night Out held in August is the venue for the awards, 
this timeline tracks better with the work of this committee. 
 
The community was informed of vacancies on this committee through the posting of open 
board, commission and committee seats that was published in the Independent and 
posted last June. Jenn Taylor has applied for re-appointment tonight and can speak in 
greater detail to the work undertaken by the committee last year. To round out this 
committee I plan to message the remaining open seats to the community and look to have 
this committee filled by March.  









Erin L. Demers, E.I.T.  erindemers@gmail.com 
Civil Engineering Consultant & Project Manager 140 Allen Drive 
  Milton, VT 05468 
  802-318-7112 

 
 

 Page 1  

 

 
January 18, 2016 
 
To: Town of Milton Recreation Commission, Recreation Program Director & Staff: 
 
My technical qualifications include over 11 years of professional experience in civil engineering and 
project management for public and private organizations such as VHB, City of Burlington - Public Works 
and Tetra Tech. Some of my recent accomplishments and qualifications include: 
 

• Municipal Project Manager for the Lower Church Street & St. Paul Street Improvement 
Streetscape Improvements completed Fall 2011. 

 
• Implemented and constructed the State of Vermont’s first Complete Street on Colchester Avenue 

in Burlington, VT with partnership from the CCRPC and RSG’s design team.  
 

• Public Works Project Manager for the City of Burlington Waterfront North Access Project - 
Skatepark, which includes some of the most complex financial agreements that the City of 
Burlington has undertaken. 

 
• Navigated the Shelburne Street Roundabout Project through a significant public process to a 

preferred alternative and now moving forward towards final design with the State of Vermont 
(VTrans). 

 
• Successful incorporation of a City budget tax & bond initiative for Citywide street paving and 

reconstruction improvements that included over $9 million dollars worth of street reconstruction, 
30% of the street network over 3 years. This work includes improving transit routes, updating 
bicycle networks and installing traffic calming measures while delivering the project within budget, 
efficiently and on schedule during peak tourist season.    

 
• Citywide sidewalk network analysis to help prioritize the repair work on pedestrian segments that 

are the most heavily utilized to get the maximum amount of value with limited infrastructure funds.  
 

• City Capital Building analysis, which includes inspection of City facilities and managing projects, 
tied to improving, repairing and updating City buildings and their systems. 

 
I thrive within complex and challenging project environments and seek interesting and diverse projects 
which incorporate fresh design and vision to improve the transportation network among all modes such as 
bicycle, rail, transit, pedestrian and commuter.  I look forward to bringing some fresh recreation 
programing ideas, infrastructure and capital improvement experience and engineering background to the 
Recreation Commission where applicable. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Erin L. Demers, E.I.T. 
 



ERIN L. DEMERS, E.I.T. 
 

Civil Engineering Consultant & Project Manager 
erindemers@gmail.com 

802-318-7112 
 

 - 2 - 

OBJECTIVE 
To volunteer and offer creative solutions within the Town of Milton Recreation Commission. 

These ideas may include using my engineering and project management experience within the private 
and public sector for our local Town of Milton. I will utilize my 10+ years of engineering, project 
management experience, strong organizational, public forum communication and interpersonal skills in a 
challenging and creative environment. I will encourage a team approach within meetings while engaging 
and incorporating Public, Staff and Commission Member ideas to promote successful recreation 
programs and projects. As a mother of three young children in the community, I am highly inspired to 
become directly involoved in our wonderful Recreation Program and be part of helping it continue to grow 
and thrive. 
 
DEGREES & CERTIFICATIONS 
 
Rochester Institute of Technology, Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering Technology,  
Rochester, New York, May 2004 
 
State of Delaware, Fundamentals of Engineering Exam, Certified Engineer in Training, October 2005 
 
State of Maine, Sitting for Professional Engineering Exam, 2017 
 
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

• American Society of Civil Engineers, Associate Member 
• Society of Women’s Engineers, Member 

 
TRAINING & CLASSES 

• Vermont Local Roads – Effective Public Speaking, Geotechnical, Survey, Cost Analysis, Project 
Management, Work Zone and Flagger Training 

• GIS Training, Springfield, MA 
• University of Delaware: Geotechnical Engineering Graduate Course, Earth Retaining Structures 
• MicroPaver Training, Chandler, AZ, 12/2007 
• OSHA Safety Training Course and OSHA Refresher Course for Managers, Wilmington, DE 
• HAZMAT Certification, Microstation & InRoads Certification, Baltimore, MD 
• Drexel University, Philadelphia, PA - Fundamentals of Engineering 

 
EXPERIENCE 
 
VHB, South Burlington, VT – Project Manager, Civil Engineer. Managed several transportation 
infrastructure projects for local municipalities throughout Vermont. Mentored junior level staff engineers. 
Sat on the hiring committee to seek new professional talent. Sought out the latest business development 
projects within the State of Vermont. Met with local officials to develop client-based work relationships 
with VHB. (August 2014 – March 2015) 
 
City of Burlington Public Works, Burlington, VT – Municipal Project Manager, Public Works Engineer. 
Managed several large-scale municipal development projects along with City Capital Buildings, Street and 
Sidewalks.  Work directly with VTrans project managers, contractors, consultants, stakeholders, general 
public and residents to deliver high quality and financially sound infrastructure improvement projects 
within the City of Burlington.  Performed resident engineering services to street reconstruction projects 
and sidewalk projects.  Develop and maintain annual budgets for city infrastructure.  Balancing the 
infrastructure needs with new innovative pilot projects to improve the transportation network within 
Burlington.  (January 2007 to April 2014)  
 
 



ERIN L. DEMERS, E.I.T. 
 

Civil Engineering Consultant & Project Manager 
erindemers@gmail.com 

802-318-7112 
 

 - 3 - 

Tetra Tech, Inc., Christiana, Delaware – Civil & Survey Designer & Project Manager, E.I.T.  Managed 
several surveying design projects including METACHEM Slurry Wall and Willow Grove Mill Major 
Subdivision Record Plan.  Designed topographic plans for commercial areas and grading plans.  Created 
and updated drafting standards and redlined CAD Operator’s plans.  (April 2005 to November 2006)  
 
Johnson, Mirmiran, & Thompson, Newark, Delaware – Design Engineer.  Performed transportation 
and highway designs and calculations for several DelDOT projects including: SR141 Advanced Utility & 
Road Contract, Elkton Road Traffic Study, and US 13 Pedestrian Improvements. (June 2004 to April 
2005) 
 
PERSONAL INTERESTS 
Ice Hockey, Telemark Skiing, Snowboarding, Paddleboarding, Running & Yoga. 
 
 
HIGHLIGHTED PROJECTS 
 
Street & Sidewalk Capital Program – City of Burlington, Project Manager, Informed and presented to 
public about the current state of our street infrastructure to raise awareness of deterioration and current 
and future costs of our roadway network for tax & bond increase vote.  Manage City’s over 3 million-dollar 
annual street reconstruction program.  Manage and update database for sidewalk construction through 
database management and inspection.  Manage the budget and assign work to Right-of-Way Public 
Works construction crews annually 
 
Represent Public Works at Various Commissions and Committees – City of Burlington, Public 
Works Commission, Steering Committee Member for Burlington on various projects, City-wide 
Neighborhood Planning Associations, Chittenden County Regional Planning Committee Meetings, 
Transportation Energy and Utility Commission, Board of Finance Meetings, City Council Meetings for 
various engineering projects throughout Burlington. 
 
College Street & Waterfront North Access Improvements Earmark - City of Burlington, Project 
Manager, Lead a team of City Departments and Consultants from conceptual scoping designs to bid 
ready construction plans for the development of the Burlington Waterfront including parking, stormwater 
treatment, underground utilities, soil contamination issues, earthwork constraints, permitting, sidewalk & 
bikepath designs while including a new in-ground skatepark to be the largest technical skatepark in 
Northern New England.  Managing multiple funding sources and state and federal grant reporting and 
processes during the design & partial construction process.  Phase 1 construction is now completed with 
Phase 2 construction this Summer 2014. 
 
St. Paul and Lower Church Street Streetscape Improvements - City of Burlington, Project Manager 
 
Memorial Auditorium Building Restoration - City of Burlington, Project Engineer 
 
Shelburne Street Roundabout – City of Burlington, Project Manager.  Represent and advocate for the 
City of Burlington while working with the State of Vermont Agency of Transportation’s Safety Program.  
Mediating public comments and meetings, verifying design plans from VTrans, working through public 
process to recommend design alternative.  Presently in design and utility phasing. 
 
Staniford Road Sidewalk Connection – Burlington, VT, Project Engineer: Coordinated with existing 
utilities to relocate to connect a long-standing missing section of City sidewalk that connects to our 12-
mile long bike  
 
State Road 141 Utility & Road Project, Newark, Delaware – Highway Designer. Designed and updated 



ERIN L. DEMERS, E.I.T. 
 

Civil Engineering Consultant & Project Manager 
erindemers@gmail.com 

802-318-7112 
 

 - 4 - 

highway plans for construction of SR 141 divided highway and performed earthwork calculations and 
profile sections for three cul-de-sacs to be built.  Also assisted in the utility plan design for several utility 
companies. 
 
DuPont Chambers Works, Deepwater, New Jersey – Civil Designer. Designed survey site maps and 
profile sections for construction of new facilities. Provided coordinate computations for Miscellaneous 
Surveys as well as built data and contouring maps throughout the DuPont Chambers Site. 
 
Dover Air Force Base, Dover, Delaware – Civil Designer. Designed survey site and topography map for 
facility and provided test boring locations for geotechnical crews. 
 
Bohemia Bay Yacht Harbour, Chesapeake City, Maryland – Civil Designer. Performed land and area 
deed record research.  Designed survey, site, and topographic map for condominium association. 
 
Brandywine Towers, Wilmington, Delaware – Civil Designer. Updated ALTA Survey and legal 
description for Brandywine Apartment Association. 
 
Sunnyside Elementary School, Smyrna, Delaware – Civil Designer. Designed topographic and 
perimeter survey map. 
 
Willow Grove Mill, Middletown, Delaware – Project Manager.  Designed topographic and perimeter 
survey map & record plan for 80 acres commercial parcel for the City of Middletown, Delaware.  Prepared 
and submitted Major Subdivision Record Plan to local government agencies. 
 
New Castle County Government Center, Delaware – Civil Designer. Performed calculations and 
perimeter location closures for wetland areas. 
 
Lower Darby Creek Landfill, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – Conducted environmental testing of soil, 
gas and water sampling and set monitor wells for the EPA.  Surveyed and collected control and found 
elevations for set monitor wells.  Designed plan for Environmental reports for mapping and elevations for 
contaminated Landfill. 
 
Watson-Johnson Landfill, Quakertown, Pennsylvania – Conducted environmental water sampling and 
studied hydro fracture effects on set monitor wells for the EPA.  
 
EPA, METACHEM Slurry Wall, Delaware City, Delaware – Project Manager.  Designed Temporary Soil 
Sedimentation Basin for excavated contaminated on-site soil.  Managed survey crew for design, controls 
and stakeout of mile-long, 75 feet deep slurry wall for containment of contaminated soil. 
 
Monroe County Landfill, Rochester, New York – Survey Field Crew. Performed full GPS survey of 
landfill for quantity earth and fill calculations. 
 
Sidewalk Expansion Project, Rochester, New York – Civil Engineer in Training. Created design and 
construction plans for sidewalk expansion with ADA requirements. 
 
Co-op Building Inspections & Design, New York, New York – Civil Engineer in Training.  Performed 
on site building inspections and designed repair plans and estimates for private co-op residential 
buildings, institutional hospitals and extended care facilities. 
 
Dupont Viton Control Room, Chambers Works, New Jersey – Civil Designer. Designed survey site 
map and profile sections for construction of new facility. 
 

































TOWN OF MILTON 
Planning & Economic Development Department 
43 Bombardier Road 
Milton, Vermont 05468-3205 
(802) 893-1186 
miltonvt.org 
 
 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

  MEMO 
TO:    Town of Milton Selectboard & Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 
FROM:   Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director 
DATE:   January 26, 2015 
SUBJECT:   CHITTENDEN COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
  FY17 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM APPLICATION 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Authorize staff to finalize the submission of the grant application to the 
Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission's FY2017 Unified Planning Work Program as 
presented  (to fund $1,400 in mapping services and requiring no match from the Town). 

 
BACKGROUND:  The Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission's (CCRPC) FY2017 Unified 

Planning Work Program (UPWP) is  the RPC's annual work program that provides the framework for 

work activities and specifies the deliverables for the next year (July 1, 2016-June 30, 2017). The current 

UPWP can be viewed at: http://www.ccrpcvt.org/workplan/.  The UPWP is the mechanism to 

implement the strategies for our region outlined in the ECOS Plan (www.ecosproject.com) and also 

helps municipalities fulfill their local plans. 

For FY17 the RPC anticipates having approximately $850,000 available for project requests (similar to 
FY15 and FY16), and some of these funds may be committed to additional phases of current projects.   
 
All UPWP documents can be downloaded from the CCRPC website: 
http://www.ccrpcvt.org/workplan/. 
 
The proposed application  would fund map updates using the Regional Planning Commission's 
Geographic Information Systems Specialist.    
 
LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS: 
Pursuant to Grant Application Policy 2014-02 the Planning Staff seeks Selectboard and Town Manager 
authorization to finalize submission of the grant. 
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
Minor UPWP projects of this category do not require a match. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1) Grant Application 
 
 

http://www.ccrpcvt.org/workplan/
http://www.ecosproject.com/
http://www.ccrpcvt.org/workplan/


RESOLUTION 
Town of Milton Selectboard  

 

 
 

Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission  
FY2017 Unified Planning Work Program Grant Application 

 
WHEREAS, the Town's Administrative Grant Application Policy 2014-02 requires that grants 
meeting certain criteria be approved by the Selectboard;  
 
WHEREAS, the Town's Department of Planning and Economic Development has prepared an 
application for the Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission's Fiscal Year 2017 
Unified Planning Work Program for mapping services valued at $1,400 with no match required 
by the Town; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Milton Selectboard, by authority granted by 
the aforementioned policy, hereby authorizes staff to finalize the submission of the grant 
application to the Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission's FY2017 Unified 
Planning Work Program as presented (to fund $1,400 in mapping services and requiring no 
match from the Town). 
 
Dated at Milton, Vermont this ______ day of _________, 2016 
 
SELECTBOARD 

 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Darren Adams, Chairperson Vacant 

 
 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
John Bartlett,  Clerk Kenneth Nolan 

 

 

_______________________________ 
John Cushing 

 
Filed with the Milton Town Clerk’s Office this ______ day of _______, 2016 
 

Attest: ___________________________________________, Town Clerk 



   
 
 

PROJECT APPLICATION FORM 
FY2017 Unified Planning Work Program 

 
Applications should be no more than 4 pages (excluding any maps and letter of support from 
your governing body to document the availability of the local match and commitment of staff 
time). A Project Application Form must be submitted for each project request. There are 
separate forms to request transportation counts and infrastructure inventories – please 
submit one form per request. Deadline for receipt of completed submissions is 4:30 p.m., 
Friday, January 22, 2016.  Please email completed forms in Word format to 
bdavis@ccrpcvt.org. All forms are available on the CCRPC website: 
http://www.ccrpcvt.org/workplan/. 
 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
Submitted by (Name, Title):   
Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director 
Municipality/Agency/Organization:   
Town of Milton 
Telephone:   
802.893.1186 
Email:  
jhemmerick@town.milton.vt.us 
2. PROJECT INFORMATION 
a. Project Title:  
Map Updates 
b. Project Location (name of roadway, intersection, geographic area, etc.):  
Attach map if needed 
Not applicable. 
c. Project Description (100 words max):  
Please state whether this is a multi-year effort and identify each phase, and for which phase this 
application is requesting funding.  
Minor Technical Assistance for single-year GIS/data/mapping Assistance. 

 
d. Budget, Scope of Work & Project Schedule:  
Please describe the tasks1 and schedule that you expect in order to complete the project.  If you 
are able to estimate the budget for each task, please include that information. CCRPC staff are 
available to assist you. Add more rows if needed. 

 

110 West Canal Street, Suite 202 
Winooski, VT 05404-2109 
802-846-4490 
www.ccrpcvt.org 

mailto:bdavis@ccrpcvt.org
http://www.ccrpcvt.org/workplan/


 

Task Month/Year Task Budget (if known) 

Add Floodway and Input Tax Map updated 
data into Mapviewer and Zoning Map. 

September 
2016 

4 hrs 

Update Road Map with New Roads September 
2016 

4 hrs. 

Address Mapviewer corrections identified in 
2016. 

September  
2016 

10 hrs. 

Prepare draft Zoning Map for anticipated 
amendment in Oct./Nov. 2016, with 
associated updates. 

September 
2016 

10 hrs. 

 
1
Please note if this project will include a Health Impact Assessment (HIA). An HIA is a practical tool that uses data, research and 

stakeholder input to determine a policy or project’s impact on the health of a population. HIAs also provide recommendations to 
address these impacts.  The Burlington District Office - Vermont Department of Health may have resources available to assist 
with this work (http://healthvermont.gov/local/district/Burlington.aspx).  

 

CCRPC Staff Assistance Only? (Yes/No) Yes @ $50 per hour 

Requested UPWP Amount $ 

Non Federal Cash Match  $ 

Other Funding $ 

Total Project Cost $ 1,400 

Requested amount is expected to be spent by June 30, 2017. Be sure to account for any 
potential direct expenses in proposed budget. Please note if you are requesting CCRPC staff 
assistance only. Contact us so we can help determine the appropriate hours/cost and potential 
match requirement. 
 
e. Expected Deliverables:  
If this is a phased project spanning multiple fiscal years, identify deliverables for this specific 
phase and other phases where applicable. New this year: Non-municipal partners are expected 
to submit a year-end report describing the impacts and outcomes of your program/efforts as a 
requirement of funding. 
Not a phased project. 
 
f. Other Project Participants (e.g., other municipalities, agencies, non-profits, consultants, 
community groups): 
NEMRC is doing the tax map update and would provide the data layer. 
Milton Town Staff would identify new roadway and Mapviewer defects for editing. 
Milton Town Staff would identify proposed Zoning District Boundaries for hearing/adoption.  

http://healthvermont.gov/local/district/Burlington.aspx


g. Project Match Requirement:  
Please refer to the FY17 UPWP PROGRAM SUMMARY for a description of match requirements 
and check below which applies to your proposal. If matching funds are required, municipalities 
should attach a letter of support from your governing body to document the availability of the 
local match and commitment of staff time. Non-municipal partners should provide a letter from 
their Board or other governing body demonstrating knowledge and support of project request, 
ability and intent to provide matching funds, etc. 
No match required. 
 

 Transportation, Land Use and Stormwater Planning 

 Transportation projects – 20% non-federal cash match required.  

 Non-transportation projects – 20% non-federal cash match required. For plan and bylaw 
development projects, contact CCRPC staff to develop a scope and budget. We 
encourage municipalities to seek Municipal Planning Grants for this type of work. An 
MPG can be used to provide the 20% (or more) match. 

 The CCRPC may waive the local match requirement for projects deemed to be regionally 
significant. 

 Major or Minor Technical Assistance 

 Transportation projects – no local match required. 

  Non-transportation projects – no local match required for projects requiring less than 
12 hours of CCRPC staff time. Projects over 12 hours will be charged a rate of $50 per 
hour. 

 Non-Municipal Partner Program Assistance 

 20% match required. 
 
h. Public Meeting Requirement:  
All municipal applications, including match amounts, must be presented to and approved by the 
governing body at a warned public meeting by the end of March 2016. For non-municipal 
partners, a public meeting is not required but applications should be approved by a Board or 
similar governing body. If available, please provide documentation by January 22 deadline. Not 
applicable for “Minor Technical Assistance” projects identified in the Program Summary packet. 
Regional project requests will be addressed as part of the CCRPC’s public process. 
No public meeting requirement. 
 
3. BENEFITS TO REGIONAL AND LOCAL PLANNING 
a. Identify which of the 8 strategies from the ECOS Plan this project will address.  
(http://www.ecosproject.com/sites/default/files/documents/Chapter%203.2%20High%20Priori
ty%20Strategies,%20Actions%20&%20Partners_20131211_0.pdf)  
 
-The Zoning Map & Mapvier are a key communication tools in the development of our 
economic systems. 
3.2.1 IMPROVE AND STRENGTHEN THE ECONOMIC SYSTEMS OF OUR  
REGION TO INCREASE OPPORTUNITIES FOR VERMONT EMPLOYERS AND  

http://accd.vermont.gov/strong_communities/opportunities/funding/overview/municipal_planning_grants
http://www.ecosproject.com/sites/default/files/documents/Chapter%203.2%20High%20Priority%20Strategies,%20Actions%20&%20Partners_20131211_0.pdf
http://www.ecosproject.com/sites/default/files/documents/Chapter%203.2%20High%20Priority%20Strategies,%20Actions%20&%20Partners_20131211_0.pdf


EMPLOYEES.  
 
-The Zoning District map changes will be focused on areas planned for growth. 

3.2.2 STRIVE FOR 80% OF NEW DEVELOPMENT IN AREAS PLANNED FOR  
GROWTH, WHICH AMOUNTS TO 15% OF OUR LAND AREA.  
 
-Communicating new roads and existing floodway on our Zoning Map and Mapviewer will better protect 
water quality and emergency preparedness. 

3.2.3 IMPROVE THE SAFETY, WATER QUALITY, AND HABITAT OF OUR 
RIVERS, STREAMS, WETLANDS AND LAKES IN EACH WATERSHED.  
3.2.5 INCREASE OPPORTUNITY FOR EVERY PERSON IN OUR COMMUNITY 
TO ACHIEVE OPTIMAL HEALTH AND PERSONAL SAFETY. 

 
b. Demonstrate where this project is identified in a local plan, or how it addresses an existing, 
documented need. Or, is this a newly identified project for which there a sense of urgency? 
Please describe.  
This request is not identified in a local plan. 
 
c. For transportation and land use projects, how will the project benefit the following: 
Not applicable. 
The safe, effective operation of the transportation system?   
Regional and/or local economic development?   
Multimodal travel options, connections, and/or reduce travel delays for people and goods?   
Increase the livability of local communities?   
Complement other local/regional activities or initiatives? 
 
d. For other planning projects, please describe how the project benefits the local community. 
Community Benefits: 
-Current, reliable, and electronically accessible zoning map, that also communicates floodway. 
-Current road map for emergency responders and visitors. 
 
e. Are there traditionally underserved populations in the project study area? How will this 
project help to achieve greater equity? How are disparities for disadvantaged communities 
improved through this project? (see the CCRPC’s 2014 Public Participation Plan for resources: 
http://www.ccrpcvt.org/aboutus/public/)  
-Makes public information more widely accessible to our constituents/customers. 
 
f. How does the project demonstrate a cost-effective solution to a potential or recognized 
problem?  
Milton benefits from CCRPC's mapping expertise in lieu of contracting or internal labor, both of 
which would involve more taxpayer funded labor hours to achieve the desired product. 
 
g. How will this project be implemented after planning is complete?   
This is an implementation project.  

http://www.ccrpcvt.org/aboutus/public/


















 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 2          January 16, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
January 16, 2016 9:00 A.M.  2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; John Cushing, Member; 5 
Kenneth Nolan, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present:  none 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; John Gifford, Interim Finance Director; 8 
Roger Hunt, Public Works Director;  Kym Duchesneau, Recreation Coordinator; Nathan Lavallee, 9 
Water/Wastewater Superintendent; Meghan Bellavance, Library Director; Bob Ware, Assistant Assessor; 10 
Dustin Keelty, Public Works Supervisor; Sheryl Prince, Town Clerk; Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director; 11 
Don Turner, Fire & Rescue Chief    12 
 13 
Others Present: Lynne Manley, Mary Jane Stinson, Tammy Boune, Chris Taylor, Jennifer Taylor, Thomas 14 
Frank, Timothy Dunn, Tracey Hempstead, Rick Dooley, Jen Dooley, Cheryl Persitz, Jeff Persitz, Marcel 15 
Choquette, Veronica Valz, Gail Wixson 16 
 17 
I. Call to Order –  Adams called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM 18 
 19 
II. Flag Salute – Adams led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag.  20 

 21 
III. New Business 22 

A. Public Budget Planning and Preparation 23 
The Board discussed the details of the presentation and gave a final review. The meeting was 24 

 recessed until 10 AM when the Community Budget Social began. 25 
 26 
B. Fiscal Year 2017 Community Budget Social 27 
Adams welcomed community members and introduced the Selectboard Members and Town 28 
Staff present. Town Manager Donna Barlow Casey then presented an overview of the fiscal year 29 
2017 Town of Milton Budget to attendees. The Town proposes a budget of $7,443,778 with 30 
$5,446,251 estimated to be raised by property taxes. This budget will not increase the tax rate. 31 
 32 
Barlow Casey also provided an overview of the water/wastewater enterprise fund, capital 33 
projects being considered, and the bond article to purchase the property and structures at 57 34 
Bombardier Rd. 35 
 36 
Questions were taken from those in attendance. A discussion regarding a $5,000 reduction in 37 
the Library budget took place between Board members and Library Trustees. 38 
 39 
Adams brought questions and discussion to a close because the Town portion was running over 40 
its allotted time.  41 
 42 

IV. Adjournment 43 
Adams adjourned the Selectboard portion of the budget social at 11:18 AM and recessed the 44 
joint meeting to allow the School Board to set up. 45 
   46 

These proceedings were live-streamed and filmed by LCATV. 47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 2          January 16, 2016 
 

 48 
Respectfully Submitted, 49 

 50 
___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 51 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 52 
 53 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 54 
 55 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          56 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 3          January 18, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
January 18, 2016 6:00 P.M.  2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; John Cushing, Member; 5 
Kenneth Nolan, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present:  none 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; John Gifford, Interim Finance Director; 8 
Roger Hunt, Public Works Director;  Erik Wells, Director- Administration & Community Services; Nathan 9 
Lavallee, Water/Wastewater Superintendent; Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director  10 
 11 
Others Present: Courtney Lamdin, Milton Independent; Charlie Baker, CCRPC 12 
 13 
I. Call to Order –  Adams called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 14 
 15 
II. Flag Salute – Adams led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag.  16 

 17 
III. Agenda Review- None 18 

 19 
IV. Public Forum – None 20 

 21 
V. Appointments 22 

   A. Jacob Hemmerick as RPC TAC Alternate 23 
Cushing moved to appoint Jacob Hemmerick as the RPC TAC Alternate for Milton. Second by 24 
Bartlett. Approved Unanimously.  25 
 26 

VI. New Business and Department Items 27 
A. Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission (CCRPC) Update 28 
CCRPC Executive Director Charlie Baker provided the Board with an update of the activities of 29 
the RPC. Extensive discussion following regarding Vermont House Bill H. 249 - An act relating to 30 
intermunicipal services and the authority to create a regional council of governments, which is 31 
currently being discussed in committee. The Board voiced opposition to the measure and 32 
requested that testimony be provided to the House Committee on Government Operations to 33 
share this opposition to the bill. Barlow Casey will look into options for this. 34 
 35 
B. Planning Consultant Services Contract Expense 36 
Planning Director Jacob Hemmerick stated this is for continuing consultant work by Place Sense 37 
for bylaw amendments. The work to date has exceeded expectations.  38 
 39 
Bartlett moved to approve the contract expense of $11,800 with PlaceSense. Second by 40 
Cushing.  Approved Unanimously. 41 
 42 
C. 2016 Certificate of Highway Mileage for State Aid 43 
Cushing moved to approve the 2016 Town Certificate of Highway Mileage. Second by Bartlett. 44 
Approved Unanimously. 45 
 46 
 47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 3          January 18, 2016 
 

 48 
D. FY 2017 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) General Fund Allocations 49 
Barlow Casey presented and discussed with the Board a revised general fund allocation CIP. 50 
Questions arose regarding the capital reserve fund and grant match amounts. Each project was 51 
discussed by Barlow Casey and Public Works Director Roger Hunt. The Board decided to wait for 52 
further information before taking action. 53 
 54 
E. Town Meeting 2016 Articles, Warning and Bond Resolution of Intent 55 
The Board decided to hold a special meeting on January 25th to discuss the CIP before finalizing 56 
the budget for the Town Meeting Warning.  57 
 58 

VII. Manager’s Report 59 
Water/Wastewater Superintendent Nathan Lavallee updated the Board on progress made 60 
regarding what is believed to be a significant water system leak. Staff is still working to find 61 
where the significant component of the water loss may be stemming from.  62 
 63 

VIII. Warrant Report #15 64 
Bartlett reviewed Warrant Report #15 and presented a list of expenses in random order. 65 
- $10,033.54, Cargill, Inc. - 135 tons of winter road salt @ $74.35/ton state bid price 66 
- $31,352.65, Champlain Water District - 15,459,890 gallons water purchased in December 67 
- $17,550.68, GMP - Electricity 11/24-12/28/15 68 
- $1,199.21, Landworks - M4D project kiosks - "add on" not in BAN approved by Selectboard, 69 
paid out of TM furniture/fixtures line item 70 
- $3,100, Motorola Solutions - replace MPD portable radio 71 
- $5,900.17, Stizel Page Fletcher - legal services on 7 line items 72 
- $5,193, Sullivan Powers - accounting assistance and audit services progress billing 73 
- $2,420, UVM - EMT course for 4 attendees 74 
- $145,899.50, Vermont League of Cities & Towns (VLCT) - 2016 PACIF contribution - payment 75 
one of two 76 
- $2,237.54, Weststaff - Finance department temp 77 
 78 
GREATER THAN $10,000 DEPARTMENTAL PURCHASE 79 
 80 
- Formula Ford, $21,755 - 2016 Ford Utility Police Cruiser ($26,755) less trade in 2013 Ford 81 
Taurus cruiser ($5,000) 82 
 83 
The invoices for the Police Cruiser and Sullivan Powers were pulled. The Board would like to 84 
discuss the details of the cruiser purchase with Chief Van Noordt.  85 
 86 
Bartlett moved to approve an amendment warrant #15 in the amount of $253,386.96 (after the 87 
meeting it was noted this amount should be $253,386.00 which was then approved by a 88 
majority of members). Second by Cushing. Approved Unanimously.  89 
 90 

IX. Minutes Meeting December 21, 2015 91 
Cushing moved to approve the meetings from the December 21, 2015 meeting as presented. 92 
Second by Bartlett. Approved Unanimously.  93 
 94 

X. Minutes Meeting January 12, 2016 95 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 3 of 3          January 18, 2016 
 

Cushing moved to approve the meetings from the January 12, 2016 meeting as presented. 96 
Second by Bartlett. Approved Unanimously.  97 
 98 

XI. Possible Executive Session Per VSA Title 1 Section 313 99 
Bartlett moved to find premature public knowledge about Real Estate would cause the Town or 100 
person to suffer a substantial disadvantage.  Second by Nolan.  Approved Unanimously. 101 
 102 
Bartlett moved to enter into Executive Session to discuss Real Estate under the provision of 103 
V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 .   Second by Nolan. Approved Unanimously. 104 
 105 
Barlow Casey and Erik Wells joined the Executive Session which began at 9:10 PM. 106 
 107 
There was no action as a result of Executive Session 108 
 109 

XII. Adjournment 110 
Bartlett moved to adjourn the Selectboard Meeting. Second by Cushing. Approved 111 
Unanimously. 112 
 113 
Adams adjourned the meeting at 10:17 PM. 114 
   115 

These proceedings were live-streamed and filmed by LCATV. 116 
 117 

Respectfully Submitted, 118 
 119 

___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 120 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 121 
 122 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 123 
 124 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          125 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 2          January 25, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
January 25, 2016 6:00 P.M.  2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; John Cushing, Member; 5 
Kenneth Nolan, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present:  none 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; John Gifford, Interim Finance Director; 8 
Erik Wells, Director- Administration & Community Services; Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director 9 
 10 
Others Present: John Palasik  11 
 12 
I. Call to Order –  Adams called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 13 
 14 
II. Flag Salute – Adams led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag.  15 

 16 
III. Agenda Review- The police cruiser discussion will be delayed to the 2/1 meeting, update on 17 

H.249 will take place at a future meeting. Manager’s Report added to discuss water main break. 18 
 19 

IV. Public Forum- None  20 
 21 

V. New Business 22 
A. Set Dates for February Selectboard Meetings 23 
Meetings will be held Monday, February 1; Tuesday, February 16 (moved for Presidents’ Day); 24 

 Monday, February 29th (pre-town meeting); there is also a Board of Civil Authority Meeting on 25 
 February 10th 26 

 27 
VI. Old Business 28 

A. FY 2017 Capital Improvement Plan General Fund Allocations 29 
Barlow Casey stated she spoke with the auditors today regarding questions regarding balances 30 
and grant revenue marked as receivable and how this affects the reserve fund bottom line 31 
moving forward. She asks the Board adopt the general fund allocation of $354,231 for capital 32 
purchases in the FY ’17 budget, and then look to hire a financial consultant, as had been a 33 
previous discussion, to resolve the remaining outstanding questions in the capital reserve fund 34 
balance and grant receivables.  35 
 36 
Cushing added the financial consultant should also be tasked with looking at impact fees. 37 
 38 
Nolan suggested allocating these funds for capital projects in contingency to begin the fiscal 39 
year. He added that the Board could act to hire the financial consultant and treat this as a 40 
project that the contractor would update and report to the Board on. This will act to alleviate 41 
this work from the Town Manager.  Barlow Casey said she will look into options for a financial 42 
consultant and look to set up Board interviews as early as possible.  43 
 44 
Cushing moved to place $354,231 in the line item contingency in the FY ’17 budget for the 45 
Selectboard to determine at a future date what capital expenditures it will be used for. Second 46 
by Bartlett. Approved unanimously.  47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 2          January 25, 2016 
 

B. Town Meeting 2016 Warning, Articles and Bond Resolution 48 
Bartlett moved to approve the 2016 Town Meeting Warning, Articles and Bond Resolution 49 
as presented. Second by Nolan. Approved unanimously. 50 
 51 

VII. Warrant Report #16 52 
The police cruiser and Sullivan Powers invoices were pulled from the warrant. 53 
 54 
Bartlett moved to approve Warrant Report #16 in the amount of $180.54. Second by Nolan. 55 
Approved unanimously. 56 
 57 

VIII. Manager’s Report 58 
Barlow Casey updated the Board that the water main break on Bear Trap Road from the 59 
morning had been repaired by a contractor. It’s a temporary fix and a permanent fix will be 60 
made after the winter. This may have been the major leak the Department was in search of to 61 
explain recent water loss. An update will be forthcoming.  62 
 63 

IX. Possible Executive Session – None 64 
 65 

X. Adjournment  66 
 67 
Bartlett moved to adjourn the Selectboard Meeting. Second by Cushing. Approved 68 
unanimously. 69 
 70 
Adams adjourned the meeting at 7:20 P.M. 71 
   72 

Respectfully Submitted, 73 
 74 

___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 75 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 76 
 77 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 78 
 79 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          80 


	Signed Agenda 2.1.16
	MEMO, Community Champion Awards Committee
	TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205

	Jenn Taylor
	Demers_Rec_Application 1.18.16
	erindemers_011916_CS
	James Parent
	Eagle Scout Disk Golf
	Memo.Planning.UPWP
	Selectboard.Resolution.UPWP Grant
	FY17_UPWP_APPLICATION_FINAL_20151119
	doc01525920160128163259
	SB Minutes 1.16.16 Draft
	2015 SLB min 1-18 draft
	SB Minutes 1.25.16 Draft

